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1. Name of Property Uahre de Venture
historic name Habre de Venture
other names/site number Thomas Stone House:  Thamas Stone National Historic Site (1THST)

CH-5
2. Location Rose Hi111 Road _hal fway hetween State Rontes 6 apd 225
street & number i i [__Inot for publication
. city, town Port Tahacen Lx] vicinity
- state Maryland code  Mp) county Charles code (17 zip code 2()f77
3. Classification
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
D private x building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
(I public-local [] district buildings
D public-State - @ site sites
. public-Federal [structure structures
[:] object ) objects
Total
Name of related multiple property listing: Number of contributing resources previously
n/fa listed in the National Register

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this

nomination request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
In my opinion, the property [:]meets Ddoes not meet the National Register criteria. See continuation sheet.

Signature of certifying official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property Dmeets Ddoes not mest the National Register criteria. DSee continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification
I, hereby, certity that this property is:
[Jentered in the National Register.
D See continuation sheet.
Ddetermined eligible for the National
Register. DSee continuation sheet.
[:]determined not eligible for the
National Register.

Dremoved from the National Register.
[:]olher, (explain:)

Signature of the Keeper Date of Action
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7._Descripti-n

Architectural Ciassification
(enter categories from Instructions)

ian-
Mid-19th Century/Greek Revival

Materials (enter categories from Instructions)

foundation _hrick

walls __brick

wood/weatherbaard

roof

other

Describe present and historic physical appearance.
The Thomas Stone
boundaries are a
states of repair.
between 1771 and 1773.

was completely gutted by
connected by them to the
and water. 1 1

southward.

Entered from the
leads one to believe it 1s a relatively
However, much of the property,

deep guts (ravines) that run in

still visible and leads toward and through a formerly terraced approach to the south facade.
1 1ch kways lies abcut 100 feet south-

A small formal

Contributing structures included in this
of Historic Places include:
- A C.1830-40 general purpose barn;
A C.1820~40 corn crib;
A C.1840-59
A C.1840~50
A C.1900-39
A C.1860-79 and C.1925-59
tobacco barn); and
A C.1787-1913 family burial ground.

and C.1940-59 horse barn;

The principal, central
fire January 1, 1977.
manor house also were dariaged in varying degrees by fire, smoke

Exterior brick remains of the principal dwelling house at Habre de

are historically and architecturally by far the i 1

a five-part composition, situated in an arc with the concave side (front) facing generally

The outlying dependencies were constructed during the 19th and 20th i

eastern property boundary the topographical as
flat estate,
the western half in particular,
a northwesterly—southeasterly axis.

application for addition to the Nation

portion — the dwelling house proper —
The adjoining hyphens and end buildings

pect of Habre de Venture
especially'adapted to agriculture.

ost surrounded by level pasture

land. 'The south side (originally the front) faces an aspect of gradually.sloping terrain

Hog Hole Run. This part of the
walkuvay about 15 feet wide is

and C.1949-59 tenant house;

sheep shed for field feeding; ' o
cattle barn/equipment shed (oldest portion originally a

The following non-contributing striuctures at Fabre ce Venture include:

A 1958 octagonal, brick building 190 feet in dizmeter designed for use as a combina-

[z] See continuation sheet

Within its
in various
Thomas Stone

1S scarred by several long,
The ravine nearest
Through it courses a narrow stream
om the old carriage house site to

al Register
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Agriculture/subsistence/animal facility
Agriculture/subsistence/agricultural outbuilding
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tion garden/tool house;

A 1958 2-story brick structure near west end of the main house with three automobile
bays on first floor and a five-room apartment upstairs;

A C.1950 formal garden located about 100 feet southeast of the main house;

A C.1960 stock pond;

A C.1940-60 masonry and frame chicken coop and poultry processing house located a
few hundred feet north of the in-holder's residence;

A C.1950 half masonry, half frame hog house located about 100 feet southwest of the
corn crib;

A C.1955 in-ground swimming pool located about 250 feet west of the mansion house;

A C.1850 sheep barn on the east side of the farm road running between the stock pond
and the AT&T service building located near the far southeastern edge of the property;

A C.1965 masonry, one story AT&T service building located on the AT&T right-of-way;

A C.1959 horse barn that lies 65' east of and parallel to the old horse barn; and

A C.1950 field shelter/feeder shed on west side of south farm road between the stock
pond and sheep barn.

The Habre de Venture house appears to be only casually symmetrical and the sequence of
construction of the five parts remains somewhat conjectural. Only the hyphens appear to
be near the age of the central block and whether earlier or later has yet to be determined.
Prior to the extremely destructive fire the five-part complex could legitimately have been
described as being one of the most picturesque, pleasingly situated Colonial houses of this
part of Maryland. The construction date for Habre de Venture seems rather firmly estab-
lished by inscriptions found in the brick work on the south side of the main block near
the corners about 1%' above ground level. The inscription "D. Stone Aug. 1772" appears

in a header near the southeast corner eleven courses below the water table. Architect
James T. Wallon in a recent report to the National Park Service stated his belief that

this inscription provides reliable information on the date of original construction of the

wemalnmmansion house. It may be that "D. Stone" was Thomas Stone's father David or, more

likely, his older half brother David of Poynton Manor, who may have overseen the masonry

work or the manufacture of bricks for the Habre de Venture manor house.

The 1772 brick work in spite of the great heat of the 1977 fire remains in surprisingly
good condition. Nearly all of it is original, mostly laid in Flemish bond and is properly
struck with a grapevine joint. The exterior walls exposed to view up to the eaves (or kick),
front and rear, are laid in Flemish bond. There seems to have been no attempt to achieve
any pattern through placement of the glazed brick ends. Brick work in the end walls, be-
glnning at eave height,becomes common bond on up to roof peak. The chimney brick work also
is laid in common bond. Peculiarly in the west end wall, the common bond begins a few
courses below the north eave and a few courses of English bond separates the Flemish from
the common. The chimmeys in both ends are laid in common bond, with a header course every
fourth course below water table and an average of every sixth course above. Most exterior
pointing remains in good condition, requiring no replacement.
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The central block is a 1% story over elevated basement, brick structure, 24 x 45 feet

in size, with a gambrel roof that had three dormered windows on front and back. There is
an exterior chimney at either end. The north and south elevations (front and back) are
each five bays wide, have center doors and one story porches extended across both facades.
The front porch floor was elevated by brick piers to first floor level. The back porch
floor was a bricked feature constructed directly on the ground. Both porches were shel-
tered by hipped roofs running the length of the north and south walls.

A center hall with stairway against the west wall extends through the house. On the east
side of the hall is a room from which the panelling was removed in 1928 that measures

22' x 18%' with 10'4" high ceiling. The hallway partition on the west side is positioned
so that it deprives the first floor west room of about four feet of space in its east-
west dimension. The panelling from the east downstairs room was removed by the City of
Baltimore for the Baltimore Museum of Art and reconstituted there as the "Habre de Venture
Room."

During the early years of this century (at least) the second floor plan of the main

dwelling portion consisted of three rooms in addition to the hallway. The east room
probably measured about 18%' x 18%', the west room probably 14%' x 18%'. At the south ,

end of the upstairs hallway was a very small room often used as a guest room or servants
quarters in the early years of this century. It is reported to have measured about 8' squar

The room in the west hyphen has a fireplace built well out into the room at its east end,
with flue slanting back to the west wall of the main building and into the chimmey at
that end at ceiling level. It has a gently vaulted ceiling. The west hyphen floor is
about 3% feet below that of the central mass. For many years Miss Margaret G. Stone
used this room as her kitchen. Miss Stone was mistress of Habre de Venture 1872-1913.
The west hyphen had a very shallow-pitch roof and was one story until about 1929. At
that time a second floor was added to accommodate modern bathroom facilities and a south-
side hallway to the kitchen wing second floor. The hyphen was then given a gambrel roof
and dormers somewhat in the style of the principal, center structure. This roof was
covered by wood shingles.

=€ conténgggtoaiigeig Eginzﬁciéo%hé’ngi%?c%n%%% structure by a partly enclosed, walk-through,
brick hyphen C.1775. Only the roof of this hyphen connects directly with the east wing.
Under- ‘this'is a walk-through 6' wide. Entrance to the hyphen enclosure is through what
appears to be an original wide, 6' x 5' wooden doorway that opens to a concrete ramp
inside that leads down to a basement entrance partly below grade at the southeast corner
of the main house. The east hyphen is 9'6'" wide, 18'9" long on the north side and 16'9"
long on the south side. This roof is covered by wood shingles.

The frame, gambrel-roofed east wing, C.1775, may not always have been located precisely
on this site since it does not sit squarely on 1its brick foundation, as disclosed by
archeological excavation in 1986. This wing, often called 'Thomas Stone's law office,"
is a two-room. (one up, one down) building. It has a soft, orange brick exterior chimney
centered on its southeast facing end. The chimney has been removed by NPS to allow
stabilization and reconstruction. Inside, a small enclosed stairway on the west wall
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The C.1830-40 kitchen wing (18' x 33') is a gable-roof structure with solid

brick ends, each having a built-in center chimney. The sides are frame with
overlapping horizontal wood siding. This structure is brick nogged, including

the center hallway partitions. It is built at a right angle to the hyphen. The
quality of design and construction indicate that at least the second story was
meant for family, not servant use. The first floor fireplaces were designed,

at least in part, for kitchen use. Design, materials, and construction details
strongly suggest mid-Federal period origin. The roof is covered with wood shingles.
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leads to a second floor room. This structure measures 18'5" x 16'6'". Both floors are of
wood, for the most part not original. The roof is covered with wood shingles.

CONTRIBUTING STRUCTURES

The C.1840-60 and C.1945-55 tenant house. This is a story and a half, extremely modest
frame structure, having three small rooms on the first floor. The house has been enlarged
about mid-20th century with two one-room additions. The south addition measures 14'6" x 14
and the west one 10'4" x 10'4". The original main part of the structure measures 14'3" x 2€
Across the east side of the old structure is a 10' x 26' screened porch, probably of mid-20t
century construction. The tenant house rests nearly at grade on a 20th century concrete
footing. It appears to have been moved here from a nearby site in this century. A steeply
pitched (18th century style) roof is sheathed with galvanized steel sheet roofing.

The C.1830-40 general purpose barn. This 1s a five bay, gable roof structure with ver—
tical wood siding. The roof ridge is oriented on an east-west axis. This barn was en-
larged about the turn of the century by a forebay on its south side which still has in it
a half dozen cattle stanchions. Some of the framing timbers in the old part were pit sawn
and hand hewn. The forebay for many years has sheltered original wood siding and roofing
on the south side. Several pine boards, measuring 15" to 18" in width, in excellent con—
dition are still in place on the original building. There is only an earthen floor
throughout. This barn now rests on a mix of solid poured concrete foundation and cinder
block-concrete piers. The roof now 1is sheathed with galvanized steel roofing material.
The original barn measures 20' x &44' and the ridge was nearly 30' above grade. The entire
building appears to have been re-sided early in this century. The forebay measures

13'9" x 44'6".

The C.1830-40 corn crib. This is a frame structure constructed on combination brick—
stone piers. It is covered by a gable roof now sheathed with galvanized steel roofing.

It 1s supported underneath on an east-west axis by four original brick piers, which are
in addition to the peripheral pier supports. The corn crib floor is of wood raised an
average of three feet above grade. Each pier is insulated from the wood construction by
a soft, thin metal shield. The roof extends a little over a foot beyond the four walls.
Along three sides are covered exterior stock feeding troughs probably added within the
past 40-50 years. The corn crib measures 15'7" x 26'11". The two end rooms of the corn
crib are entered by two original, but altered, wooden doors from a central hall-like room.
One of these doors appears to have an original, wooden lock still in place.

The C.1840-50 and C.1940-59 horse barn. This is an all-frame structure with gable roof
oriented roughly on a north-south axis. The north half is by far the older and rests on
a fieldstone—mortar foundation. It measures 30' x 24'. The much newer south half was
constructed about 1959 and attached directly to the south end of the original barn. The
older half provides six stalls and the newer half, four. The newer south half rests on

a solid concrete foundation. The entire structure now is covered with galvanized metal
roofing. The sides are sheathed with wooden clapboard siding, the old half retaining most
of its original siding. The entire structure now measures 24' x 52'. The floor is
earthen throughout.
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The C.1900-39 sheep shed for field feeding. This structure was built to automatically
dispense dried corn directly to livestock. It has a typical shed roof and rests on a

cast iron pipe pier foundation. The entire structure is made of wood and has a galvanized
metal roof. The building measures 8' x 20' and is raised about two feet abov e grade.

The C€.1860-79 and C.1925-59 cattle barn/equipment shed (oldest portion originally a
tobacco barn). The cattle shed forebay is constructed along the entire original south
side of the barn and appears to have been built early in this century. The forebay on
its south side opens onto a large outdoor concrete apron. On the east end is a modern
equipment shed built in 1958 to shelter about half a dozen pieces of contemporary farm
implements. It is entirely open along its south side. The original tobacco barn portion
of this structure measures roughly 16’ x 47'. The overall structure now measures about
28" x 108"'. There is earthen floor throughout and a galvanized metal roof. The building
rests on a variety of brick, stone and wood materials. The gable roof ridge is oriented
along an east-west axis.

The C.1787-1913 family burial ground. This cemetery contains primarily Stone family
gravesites but includes a few distantly related people. The latest Stone family burial
was that of Miss Margaret Graham Stone who died in 1913. The cemetery is surrounded by a
C.1860 iron fence that measures 32' x 32'. This burial ground lies about 300' southeast
of the Habre de Venture manor house. Immediately east of the fenced-in Stone cemetery

1s an unfenced wooded section of ground about the same size as the fenced area, 1n which
black servants and employees were interred, at least in this century. Documentation for
location and use of the black cemetery was based primarily on an early 1988 taped inter-
view with Charles Jones Woodland of Ripley, Md. He has testified that his grandfather
Cornelius Woodland is buried here, and that he was/g%ployee of Margaret G. Stone. Members
of the Stone family who still live in this area remember this as having been the cemetery
for black people. Whether or not it ever served as a burial place for slaves remains to
be determined.
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~ Centifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:
@nationa”y @statewide [ﬂlocally
Applicable National Register Criteria Ja Ixls [Jc [Jo :
Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [:’A DB DC DD @E [:]F DG
Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
11 ernment 1770-1875
_
Cultural Affiliation
n/a
Significant Person Architect/Builder
Thomasg Stone, Mj chael Jenifer Stone n/a

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.
THOMAS STONE
(1743 - 1787)

The primary significance of the Thomas Stone National Historic Site is that
-1t was the home of a Signer of the Declaration of Independence. Thomas Stone, the youngest
Signer from Maryland, purchased the Habre de Venture (442 acres) property late in 1770 and
began constructing a new house on the property the next year. It probably was completed
by the end of 1773. Thomas and Margaret Stone and their three children 1ived at Habre

de Venture until they moved to Annapolis about the middle of 1783. After Mrs. Stone's
death in June 1787, Thomas returned to Habre de Venture, apparently living there until he
died in October of that year.

the year of his death Stone served in the Upper House of the Maryland Assembly and this state
govermment service often took him away from his Habre de Venture home. Extant records do
not indicate the depth of Stone's i1nvolvement in managing the Habre de Venture property.

Its condition as a producing plantation seems not to have occupied much of his attention.

and Michael Jenifer Stone.

dependence. Before the end of 1776 Stone was viewed by many in Congress as a bright,
steady, and knowledgeable political scientist. Peculiarly, even today many Marylanders
think of Stone only as a quiet, taciturn, introverted man who seldom expressed himself

See continuation sheet
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publicly or forcefully on any notable political matter. The respect paid Stone by his
peers in Congress,from all parts of the new nation, should long ago have laid to rest such
traditionally ill-founded simplistic evaluation of Thomas Stone's stature as a courageous,
deliberate, decisive patriot whose very virtues have worked against his historical
reputation. Already, in 1777, he was a trusted friend of Pennsylvania's John Dickinson,
then considered by many in America to be the Nation's foremost student and scholar in
matters of constitutional goverrnment. When the Articles of Confederation were presented
to Congress for approval the first draft carried the signature of Thomas Stone. Clearly,
by the beginning of 1777 Stone had seen both the wisdom of Independence and the critical
need for a competent, broadly respected central government. He remained in Congress long
enough to see the Articles of Confederation approved by that body.

Doubtless it was a matter of frustration and consternation for Stone to cope with Mary-
land's tenacious refusal to ratify the Articles of Confederation for over four years. In
fact, almost single-handedly the State of Maryland stonewalled implementation of America's
first competent centralized political authority. FEarly in 1781, at long last, Thomas Stone
found himself in the right place at the right time to play a major, decisive role in re-
versing his native State's stand on ratification. True enough, a few of the major stum—
bling blocks by this time had melted. The question of dealing with the western lands had
somehow resolved itself and it was this question, primarily, that had upset Maryland and

a few other small states for so long. When the ratification vote came up in the Assembly
in January 1781, Thomas Stone in the Maryland Senate was able to play a pivotal role in
the Senate decision to support Maryland's ratification of the Articles of Confederation.
Thomas Stone's old friend Thomas Johnson spearheaded the fight in the House of Delegates.
The Stone-Johnson combination in Annapolis gave ratification proponents exactly what was
needed to make the Articles of Confederation in effect the first constitution of the
United States of America.

In March 1784 Stone was sent back to Philadelphia to represent Maryland in Congress. On
May 28th, and again on June 2nd, 1784, Stone was elected by members of the Continental Con-
gress (meeting in Congress Assembled) to sit as their chairman and to serve thereby tem—
porarily as President of the United States in Congress Assembled. 1In this position of
course, however briefly, Thomas Stone of Habre de Venture served as the nation's chief of
state. During the Congressional sessions of 1784 Stone served on a committee that included
Jacob Read, James Monroe, Hugh Williamson, and Roger Sherman, a stellar group of the most
capable and distinguished leaders of the Continental Congress at this time.

In one of Stone's most historic, significant acts he informed General George Washington
in a letter of January 28, 1785 that ''...Mr. Jenifer, Johnson, Chase and myself are ap-
pointed commissioners to settle the jurisdiction and navigation of the bay and the rivers
Potomack and Pocomoke with the Commissioners of Virginia." This was one of the basic
early communications that led to the Mount Vernon Convention a couple of months later.
This meeting produced the Potomac Compact, which continues to this day as an important,
historic instrument of Maryland law. It proved to be the first link forged in a chain of
subsequent events that led more or less directly to the Philadelphia Constitutional Con—
vention of 1787. The fact that Stone wrote to Washington on such a critical matter in
behalf of Maryland indicates beyond any doubt that he was then highly respected and
trusted by the leading statesmen of his native state.
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Although Maryland oddly chose not to participate publicly as an equal political entity
in the Annapolis Convention, held in the shadow of the statehouse dome, Thomas Stone ap—
parently represented Maryland in a rather unofficial and de facto capacity at this meet-—
ing. In a forceful, well-written letter printed in The Maryland Gazette on December 28,
1786, Stone advised the public (in connection with his criticized absence from court
business in Charles County) that he had been appointed a commissioner for Maryland to
confer in Annapolis the first week in September [1786] with "...commissioners of
Virginia, or of the other states."

Many historians feel that the Mount Vernon Conference of March 1785 led directly to the
Annapolis Convention in the fall of 1786. This assembly resulted in a proposal for the
general all-states convention to be held in Philadelphia the next spring. Records of the
Votes and Proceedings — House of Delegates for November 1786 indicate that Stone was in-
timately involved in the Assembly helping shape Maryland's preparation to participate in
the Philadelphia convention. The Assembly seemed to agree that the convention was to
deal with revision of the federal constitution. On December 28, 1786 the Assembly of
Maryland added Thomas Stone to a newly established joint committee responsible for de-
termining the State's role in the anticipated deliberations about revisicn of the Arti-
cles of Confederation. As one of the authors of the Articles, Stone surely was eminently
qualified to advise this group. Members of the State Senate must have assumed now that
Thomas Stone would represent Maryland in Philadelphia. However, he chose not to go.

In fact, he was quite inactive in the assembly for most of 1787, not at all after his
wife died early in June.

The foregoing facts should indicate quite positively how much prestige and influence
Thomas Stone enjoyed among his colleagues. Many of his peers in the Continental Congress
and in the Assembly of Maryland have stepped easily, largely, and quite noticeably across
the pages of American history during the past two centuries. The names Carroll, Paca,
Chase, Dickinson, Read, Monroe and Thomas Johnson are much more generally related to

the major historic events and heroic accomplishments of the 18th Century greats who en-
gineered our early nationhood. The completion and dedication of the Thomas Stone Na-—
tional Historic Site at Port Tobacco, Maryland will go far to compensate for an old
wrong. Stone earned a much more prominent spot in American history than the years have
given him. The greatest mystery in all this is how even his native State could have
neglected his contributions in such considerable degree since his death.

MICHAEL JENIFER STONE
(1747 - 1812)

Two of Thomas Stone's younger brothers enjoyed noteworthy professional careers that

were a bit overshadowed by that of their brother, the Signer. John Hoskins Stone served
as governor of Maryland 1794-97. Michael Jenifer Stone, lawyer and judge, helped repre-
sent Maryland in the First Congress under the Constitution of 1787, while it sat in

New York. A Federalist, he served in Congress March 4, 1789 to March 3, 1791. He did
not run again for this office, perhaps because he was appointed judge of Marvland's F irst
Judicial District in 1791. At that time high state offices often were considered more
attractive and lucrative to politicians and professional men than many similar new
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Federal government positions. Michael Jenifer Stone probably lived at Habre de Venture
from 1787 until he married about 1794 and began building his own home, Equality, near
today's Bel Alton, Maryland.

In the First Congress two Maryland lawyers became men of note —- Judges Joshua Seney and
Michael Jenifer Stone of Habre de Venture in Charles County. They left an indelible
mark on American history. On May 16, 1789, Seney presented to the House an act of the
Maryland legislature that offered Congress 10 square miles of territory in any part of
the state to be used for the seat of the new federal government. Between this date and
the summer of 1790 Judges Seney and Stone fought with great determination and enthusiasm
to gain for their state the new capital site, and they did it. In a letter dated

July 2, 1790 Michael Jenifer described to his merchant brother Walter
(living at Habre de Venture) the incredible joy of having played a major role in gain-
ing for Maryland the site of the new federal district. He advised Walter that it was a
certainty that the seat of government "...shall be on banks of the river Potowmack!

The place to be elected by the president of the United States!" This plum had not
fallen easily. Both Philadelphia and Baltimore greatly desired the new capital site
and fought hard for it. In the early months of the new Congress Stone also helped to
determine amounts of compensation for the President, Vice President and Members of Con-
gress. He advised Congress now that ''the President ought to be at liberty to live in
any style he thought proper and the House (of Representatives) ought to give him such
compensation as they thought his services merited. You furnish him with a house, horses
and carriages you declare that this is the house, horses, the carriages which he shall
use. There is certainly some degree of indelicacy in this. If he was a private gen—
tleman he would be at liberty to use such as he liked best —— the Constitution gives us
no right to dictate to him (in such a way)." '

Michael Jenifer had served in the second session of the 1780-81 Maryland General Assem—
bly and continued to serve in the Lower House through 1783. He was chief judge of his
district (southern Maryland) from January 1791 to January 1802.

The Debates and Proceedings in the Congress of the United States, Volumes I and II,
indicate the remarkable quality of Michael Jenifer's political understanding and broad,
insightful awareness of most major concerns of the new govermment. His debates about
handling of amendments to the Constitution, in particular, demonstrate his broad grasp
of matters soon to become critical in developing new machinery of government.

Perhaps one of Michael Jenifer Stone's greatest responsibilities was in serving, 1in ac—
cord with the will of Thomas Stone, as the guardian for the three orphaned Stone chil-
dren ~ Frederick, Margaret and Mildred. From 1787 through his marriage about 1794
(very late in life) Michael Jenifer's home was Habre de Venture. There are indica—
tions that he conducted his law practice from here. Frederick Stone, only son of
Thomas and Margaret, died of yellow fever at Princeton, New Jersey in 1793. By 1794
the Stone daughters had married and left the state, leaving Michael Jenifer at last
free to separate himself from Habre de Venture responsibilities. For years, however,
he kept an eye on Habre de Venture for his nieces living in northern Virginia. Between
1795 and about 1820 Habre de Venture was leased, with rental payments going to younger
Stone daughter Mildred Stone Daniel of Stafford County, Virginia.
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WILLIAM BRISCOE STONE
(1797 - 1872)

Michael Jenifer's second son, William Briscoe Stone, born 1797, also became a Port To-
bacco lawyer and judge. About 1820 he began overseeing the Habre de Venture property
on behalf of his cousin Mildred. By 1825 he was living at Habre de Venture. His first
child, Margaret Graham Stone, was born there in 1825. In July 1831 William B. Stone
purchased a large portion of the Habre de Venture property, including Thomas Stone's
mansion house, and he lived there until his death in 1872. William Briscoe Stone, like
his father, became a chief judge in Maryland's first judicial district. From 1844
through 1846 the Honorable William Briscoe Stone sat on the bench of Maryland's Court
of Appeals in Annapolis. He was the "master’ of Habre de Venture for about 50 years,
much longer than anyone else. He planned and supervised the improvements of the 1820's
and early 1830's, which took place when the property was still owned by Mildred Stone
Daniel. These improvements probably included the "new kitchen," still extant, the
general purpose barn, adjacent corn crib and old horse barn. If so, these structures
and improvements must be dated about 1828. At this time W.B.Stone re-did a leaky
Habre de Venture roof (including porches) with cypress shingles.

Had Thomas Stone's only son not died in his youth he doubtless would have become mas-
ter of Habre de Venture. As things turned out, the Michael Jenifer Stone and
William Briscoe Stone periods of supervision and ownership continued a Stone-Habre de
Venture relationship that lasted over a century. During these generations and periods
of stewardship the property was managed continuously by aristocratic, well educated
landed gentry of southern Maryland whose lives typified what was considered the very
best that southern Maryland had to offer. The Stone line in Maryland from 1648 right
up to the 20th Century produced people of accomplishment and substance. However, the
most noticeable after Governor William Stone were the three remarkable sons of David
and Elizabeth (Jenifer) Stone of Poynton Manor...Thomas, Michael Jenifer, and

John Hoskins.
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Verbal Boundary Description
The Thomas Stone National Historic Site contains 321.9 acres. The site includes the

-Habre de Venture plantation house, several 19th Century denendencies, several 20th Cen—

tury structures and the graves of Thomas Stone and his wife Margaret. The boundary starts

‘at the northeast corner on the west edge of Rose Hill Road at latitude 38° 32' 22" N—

Longitude 77° 02' 21" W, then proceeds southeasterly for about 5880° along the road to
See continuation sheet
the southeast

Boundary Justification

The boundary determination is co—terminus with the boundaries of the property which the
NPS purchased.

ya
/

[Jsee continuation shest
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corner on the west side of the road. Then westerly on course S 77-04-43-W for 1258 feet,
then N 67-57-16-W for about 440 feet, then S 02-18-27-W for about 592 feet, then west
again N 87-41-33-W for about 607 feet, then northwest about 322 feet then continuing
northwestward for about 3600 feet to a point across Hog Hole Run (west side), then in a
northeasterly direction for about 2030 feet to the northwest corner at latitude

30° 32' 10" N—longitude 77° 02' 41" W, then eastward returning to the northeast corner
at the Rose Hill Road starting point.

For precise boundary courses and distances see current plat for Habre de Venture property
in Charles County Land Record Office — File #2304, scale: 1" = 300' Habre de Venture,
Vischer, First District. This plat shows the metes and bounds of Habre de Venture as

now owned by National Park Service.
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#1 Looking down main entrance road in southerly direction. Brick entrance
gate posts constructed by John M. Sasser in 1955, Photo taken 1987.
#2 Panorama across north pasture. showing left to right east end of mansion house,

C. 1958 horse barn with older barn showing just to right behind it, hog house,
C. 1830 "English" barn and C. 1850 tobacco barn with cow shed and machine shed
attachments. Photo taken in 1987. (1, 6, 7, 11, 9, 10)

#3 View along north side of driveway. Shows new horse barn, old "English" barn,

part of 1850 tobacco barn and shed, in-holder (Lemko) house and chicken/poultry
- processing building. Photo taken in 1987. (6, 9, 10, 27, 12)

#4 North side of mansion house, west hyphen, and "kitchen wing." Shows on main
house recent stabilizing temporary roof, wall and chimney caps, temporary roof
on hyphen. Windows in brick end of kitchen wing were removed about 1986 because
they were not original. Photo taken 1985. (D

#5 West end of kitchen wing and south (front) facade, east hyphen, and office
wing. Photo taken in 1985. (1A, 1, 1B)

#6  West and south sides of mansion house complex showing new temporary protective
roof construction added about 1984. This photo taken in 1987 during basement
stabilization work which required sand and bricks visible in photo. (1)

#7 Southeast corner of the law office/farm manager building. Photo shows work
undertaken to construct new foundations placed on poured concrete footings.
Photo taken in 1987. (1B)

#8 South side of Habre de Venture showing all five elements of the Habre de Venture
complex. Photo taken in 1987. (1)

#9 West end of garage/apartment structure and 1958 brick garden house in right

' foreground. Photo taken in 1987. (3, 2)

#10  Garage/apartment structure with 1958 garden house and south facade of mansion
house in background. Photo taken in 1987. (3, 2, 1)

#11  East side of C. 1958 horse barn with in-holder house to right of it. Photo
taken in 1987. (6, 27)

#12  East side of original C. 1830-40 portion of older horse barn. Photo taken 1987.(7)

#13  North end and west side of old horse barn with portion of C. 1958 addition
showing on right. Photo taken in 1987. (7)

#14 - Northeast corner of original part of older horse barn. Photo taken in 1987.(7)

#15  South and east sides of C. 1830 corn crib and barn. Photo taken in 1987. (8, 9)

#16  South side of C. 1830 corn crib with part of machine shed showing at end of
old C. 1850 tobacco barn. Photo taken in 1987. (8, 10)

#17  Looking southward from C. 1830 YEnglish" barn toward horse barns (older on
right) with center portion of mansion house showing. Photo taken in 1987. (9, 6, 7, 1

#18 West ends of C. 1830 corn crib and "English" barn. Road in foreground leads
to in-holder house. Photo taken in 1987. (8, 9

#19  C. 1945 hog house. Photo taken in 1987.(11)

#20  C. 1940 livestock dried corn feeding shed (stands between hog house and
tenant house). Photo taken in 1987. (14)

#21  Interior view of framing construction details in original portion of 1850
tobacco barn, looking northeastward. Photo taken in 1987. (10)
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THOMAS STONE NATIONAL HISTORIC SITE, CHARLES COUNTY, MARYLAND

#22  West end of C. 1850 tobacco barn showing attached cow shed on right. Photo
taken in 1987. (10)
#23  C. 1850 tobacco barn with 1958 machine shed attached to its east end. Photo
taken in 1987. (10)
#24  West end and south side of sheep shed in pasture southeast of mansion house —
on road between stock pond and AT&T service building. Photo taken in 1987. (15)
#25  South and east sides of tenant house. Photo taken in 1987. (13)
. #26  North end of tenant house. Photo taken in 1987. (13)

#27 Looking in southwesterly direction along AT&T right of way at extreme south-

eastern corner of Habre de Venture property. AT&T service building in fore-
- ground. Photo taken in 1987. (17)

#28  Looking in a northerly direction through Stone family cemetery. Mansion house
between tree and large stone about three hundred feet away. Thomas Stone table-
top memorial at left inside fence with recently placed DAR bronze plaque-on:
marker at foot of Stone's grave. Large stone monument toward center of
cemetery is that of William Briscoe Stone. Photo taken in 1984. (44)

#29  Looking southwestward across Stone family cemetery lot, Margaret Stone memorial
in foreground and Thomas Stone in background near fence. Photo taken in 1984. (44)

#30  Copies of photos of the Thomas Stone painting that hangs in Maryland State
House by Bordley and Aubrey Bodine photo which shows north facade of the
5-part Habre de Venture at its most pleasing appearance, probably about 1955.
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{7. DESCRIPTION

) (Check One)

K&k Excellent {J Good O Fair ] Deterioroted {J Ruins [ Unexposed
(Check One) (Check One)

34 Altered 3 VUnaltered ) Moved %3t Original Site
DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

CONDITION

Built by Thomas Stone in 1771, Habre-de-Venture is a Georgian-brick
and frame, five-part composition, with its wings and hyphens extending
to the rear (south) on either side to form an semicircle. The main or
central block 1s a 1 1/2 story over elevated basement brick structure,
24 by 45 feet in size, with a gambrel and dormered roof. The walls are of
brick laid in Flemish bond, with glazed headers, and there is an exterior
end chimney at either end. The north (front) and south elevations are each
five bays wide, have center doors, and one-story porches extends.across
there facades. A center hall, with the stair set against the west (right)
wall extends through the house. On the right is a dining room and on the
east, the large living room. In 1928 the original and elaborate hand-carved
panelling of the living room was removed by the Baltimore Museum of Art,
which replaced it with a fairly exact replica of the original panelling.
The dining room has the fireplace wall built well out into the room with the
flue curving back to the wall and up to the ceiling. Dining room walls are
plastered.

335

The west (or right) kitchen wing is a low two-story gable-roofed
structure with brick ends and frame sides built at right-angles to the
main axis. The second story, containing two bedrooms, was added over the
kitchen about 1820. This west wing is joined to the center house by a
hyphen. Originally gable roofed, one-story in height and containing the
breakfast room, this passage has had its height increased to 1 1/2 stories by
the addition of a gambrel roof with dormers to provide bathrooms on the
second floor for the main house. The east (or left) wing is a low gambrel-
roofed one-and-a-half story frame structure with one-room on each floor.
This wing served as Thomas Stone's law office. The east wing is connected
to the main house by means of a one-story brick wing with gable roof.

Except for the removal of the full-length wall panelling in the living
room of the main house and the addition of a half story to the west wing,
Habre-de-Venture is little altered. The house has been carefully restored
and is in excellent condition. Used as a private residence, Habre-de-Venture
is not open to visitors.
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2. Boundaries for the Historic Site Habre-de-Venture

Approximately 360 acres roughly in the ‘shape of a semicircle, including
the Habre-de-Venture plantation house, its dependencies, and the grave of
Thomas Stone, starting at the northeast corner on the west edge of Rose Hill
Road at latitude 38° 32' 22" N. - longitude 77° 02' 21" W., then proceeding
southeasterly for about 7000 feet along the west shoulder of Rose Hill Road

to the southeast corner at lat. 38° 31' 22" N. - long. 77° ol' 45" W., then
going westerly about 3100 feet to the top of the west bank Hoghole Run at the
southwest corner at lat. 38° 31' 23" N. - long. 77° 02' 23" W.; then continuing
to the northwest along the thop of the west bank of Hoghole Run for about 5600
feet to the northwest corner at lat. 38° 32' 10" N. - long. 77° 02' 41" W.;
then returning to the northeast about 2000 to the beginning, the northeast
corner. Precise boundaries, as described above, are recorded in black.in on a
copy of U.S. Geological Survey Map: Port Tobacco Quadrxangle, Maryland, Quadrang
7.5 Minute Series (Topographic, 1966, on file with the Branch of Historical
urveys, Division of History, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation,
National Park Service.

|




F. SIGNIFICANCE

)

INS + RUCTIONS

SEE

b

PERIQOD (Chack One ur More as Apprapeiate)

{J Pre-Columbjon! {0 16th Century 3 18th Century [ 20th Century
) 15th Century [ 17th Century 3 19th Century
SPECIFIC DATE!S) (If Applicable and Known) 17271=1787
AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Chock One or Mare as Appropriate)
Abor iginel O Education J3t Politicat {1 Urbon Planning
{Q Prehistoric [0 Engineering ) Religion/Phi. O Other (specity)
[ Historie O Industry losophy
O Agricuiure O Invention O Science
O Architecture O Loendscope O Sculpture
O A Architecture (O Secial/Human-
O Commerce O Literature itorian
[3 Communications 0 Militery [0 Theater
[0 Conservation ] Music [ Transportation

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

. Brief Sketch of the Life of Thomas Stone,* 1743-1787.

Built in 1771, Habre-de-Venture was the principal home from 1771
to 1787 of Thomas Stone, a Signer of the Declaration of Independence for
Maryland, lawyer, planter, and politician. Stone is buried in the family
grave yard adjacent to the little-altered plantation house. :

Thomas Stone was born on "Poynton Manor," Charles County, Maryland
in 1743, He went to Annapolis, Maryland, where he studied law in the
office of Thomas Johnson. Stone was admitted to the Maryland bar in 1764
and went to Frederick, Maryland to practice. 1In 1768 he married
Margaret Brown, the 15 year old daughter of Dr. Gustavou Brown, who
brought Stone a dowery of & 1,000. In 1771 he bought land near Port
Tobacco, Charles County, Maryland, and built a country house which he
called "Habre~de-Venture."

Stone took his seat in the Continental Congress on May 13, 1775, and,
except for a part of the year 1777, when he declined re-election, he
served until October 1778. He voted for and signed the Declaration of
Independence., He was elected a delegate to the Continental Congress in
1783 and took his seat in March 1784, but declined re-election and
resumed his law practive in Maryland. Stone also served as a state senator
for Charles County from 1776 to 1787. He was elected a delegate to the
Constitutional Convention in 1787, but declined to serve on account of the
illness of his wife, who died in June of that year. Stone died on
October 5, 1787, at Alexandria, Virginia, while waiting for a ship to take
him to England. He was buried in the family graveyard at "Habre-de-Venture.l
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7. DESCRIPTION

CONDITION (Gheck one)
Excellent Good J Fair J Deteriorated [ Ruins J Unexposed [
(Check One) (Check One)
INT iT
EGRITY Altered [ Unaltered £ Moved [ Original Site [R

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
Habre de Venture is an irregular five part Maryland manor house
composed of three different early building methods and arranged
in the arc of a circle. The central section is an all brick, 1%
story Youse with an English gambrel roofj there are five bays (three
dormers) including front and rear doorways and an overhanging porch
(porte cochere) on the north, or entrance, side supported by six
plain square columns and there is a raised, screened porch (recent)
on the south side. This main section is raised on a brick base.
The porch roofs and all roofs are wood shingle. The hyphen to the
north west is a smaller gambrel roof brick structure of three bays
with two dormers (brick is Flemish bond with glazed headers). This
hyphen connects a small two story frame wing set perpendicularly
to the hyphens this wing has brick end walls with internal chimneys.
To the southwest is a small, completely frame 14 story gambrel
roof structure (with no dormers) that served as Thomas Stone's law
office, It has an end chimmey and framing is visible on the interior;
this ycit&i is connected by a low brick breezeway.
The living room panelling is now in the Baltimore Museum of Art,
but other early panelling and woodwork remains.
The present owner(s) restored the house and also built a polygonal
brick garden tool house, ac well as a gambrel roofed garage.
Habre de Venture is a working farm wh&eb—breeds~an&—ra993~ihnrough-
JDred horsese.
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B. SIGNIFICANCE

PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate)
Pre-Columbian [} 16th Century [ 18th Century 20th Century [
15th Century 0 17th Century [] 19th Century [

SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable and Known) cl770

AREAS OF 31GNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

Abor iginal Education O Political = Urban Planning a3
Prehistoric ] Engineering O Religion/Phi- Other (Specity) 0O
Historic O Industry 0O losophy O Architecture

Agriculture 0O Invention O Science O :

Art (] Londscape Sculpture O

Commerce O Architecture [ Social/Humon-

Communications [ Literature 0O itarian (]

Conservation (] Militory (] Theater O

Music (] Transportation [}

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE (Include Personages, Dates, Events, Etc.)

"The plan of Habre-de-Venture is unique among the old houses of
Maryland" (Forman, Early Manor...p 77) and the house illustrates
the three principal types of Southern Maryland architecture. Its
excellence as an example is attested to by the fact that the
living room panelling is now in the Baltimore Museum of Art.

Built by Thomas Stone, a signer of the Declaration of Independence,
a member of Congress.(1775-1784) and at one time presiding officer
of that body. The Maryland Consitifution is believed to have been
drafted in the law office {Mrs. Vischer).

Al though restored, Habre de Venture retains much of its early
character. As the home of a signer of the Declaration of In&e—
pendence and as an architectural rarity, Habre de Venture is

both a textbook of Southern Maryland architecture and am important

monument in the statgls history.
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9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES ' _ B
Katherine Scarborough, Homes of the Cavaliers 1930 p 31
Henry C. Forman, Early Manor and Plantation Houses of Maryland 1934
» 11
Mrs. Peter Vischer, Port Tobacco, Md.
10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA % .
LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES o LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LESS THAN ONE ACRE
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE \.ATITUDVE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minb?es,-Scconds Degrees Minutes Seconds
Nw (] ’ - o ’ ] o 1] E] [} £ [ ]
NE (-] 3 - [-] ’ -
SE o ’ » [-] . -
SW o v L[] © . -
LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES
STATE: CODE COUNTY CODE
STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE
STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE
STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE
. FORM PREPARED BY
NAME AND TITLE:
William Morgan
ORGANIZATION DATE
University of Delaware June 4, 1969
STREET AND NUMBER:
Department of Art History
CITY OR TOWN: STATE CODE
Newark Delaware
12. STATE LIAISON OFFICER CERTIFICATION = l . NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICATION

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service.
level of significance of this nomination is:
O State [ Local

The recommended

O

National

Name

Title

Date

I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.

Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation

Date

ATTEST:

Keeper of The National Register

Date
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CONDITION

*)

Excellent (O Good [ Fair (O Deteriorated (] Ruins [ Unexposed [

(Check One) (Check One)
INTEGRITY Altered [ Unaltersd [ Moved [] Original Site [J
DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYS)CAL APPEARANCE
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Wesi Wing

West Hyphen

)

Central Core

East Hyphen

East Wing

from the HABS Drawings, 1985
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See original in vertical file

Habre de Venture, CH-5
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See original photos in vertical file, both pre- and post—
1977 fire. 24 large and 5 small black and white. Habre de Venture, CH-5
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Front view of Thomas Stone
House after 1977 fire.

—

HISTORY The Thomas Stone House serves most likely completed around
: as a reminder of the importance 1772. The present-day wings of
of Thomas Stone’s political the house were added at later
contributions. It was while time periods.
Thomas Stone was living at his
Haberdeventure estate that he In 1977, a chimney fire gutted
began his political career. the center block of the house,
Thomas Stone is most noted for leaving only its brick walls.
his role as a signer of the Recognizing the need to protect
Declaration of Independence in Haberdeventure, Congress
1776. authorized the creation of
Thomas Stone National Historic
Thomas Stone purchased the Site in 1978. The National Park
property known as Service is currently in the
Haberdeventure in 1770. process of restoring the Thomas
Construction of the main house Stone House to its mid 19th
probably began in 1771 and was century appearance.
P~
PHASE | Restoration work on the Thomas
NEW ROOF. C‘ﬁ‘,ivo‘é‘x‘s"_"“ Stone House will be completed
in different phases over a period
P of several years.

Phase I construction began in

.8 ”.

= 1991. Its main objective was to
i reconstruct the gambrel roof and
— dormer windows of the

—
E ﬁ B B g structure’s center block.
D Completion of the first phase
=

= occured early in 1992.

11
1

CENTER BLOCK — NOR™®' v -
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- SE N FUTURE RESTORATION

I restoration is expected to PHASE II CONSTRUCTION Once exterior restoration is completed,
" 1993. It will focus on FRONT OF HOUSE -- NORTH VIEW the structure’s interior will be
the remaining exterior of the reconstructed and turned into a visitor
.+ . ith the exception of the east ' information center and museum.
w ). Nork performed during Phase '
<l Clude replacement of the INSTALL NEW The first floor parlor will be

ack porches, replacement METAL ROOF.
2 sections, masonry cleaning and

reconstructed and furnished to resemble

, the eighteenth century lifestyle of Thomas
i INFILL FORMER DOORWAY g Ty litestyle ¢
and the restoration of doors WITH NEW BRICK. REPLACE Stone. Parlor reconstruction will be
lows. REPLACE AND REPAIR WITH NEW BRICK WHICH accomplished by replicating the original
WINDOWS AND SHUTTERS | MATCHES ADJACENT paneling purchased by the Baltimore
ING. .
WHERE NECESSARY. COURS Museum of Art in 1928.

The complete restoration of the Thomas
INSTALL NEW Stone House will provide a visible link to
METAL ROOF. America’s past and will enable visitors to
gain a better understanding of the life and
career of Haberdeventure’s most famous
owner, Thomas Stone.

"BLACE, CLEAN AND REPOINT
BRICKS WHERE NECESSARY. NEW PORCH.

]

NEW WOOD SHINGLE ROOF.Ih—\

i

|

|
FOR YOUR SAFETY

The Thomas Stone House is in the

r v process of being restored. Uneven terrain
% o ¢ and continuing construction make the site
,4 // potentially hazardous in the area near the
house. Observe all caution signs and
EAST WING barriers. Avoid construction zones.

(NOT IN THIS PHASE) NEW WOOD STEPS REMOVE EXISTING BRICK INFILL
AND RAILING. AT FORMER WINDOWS. REPLACE

WITH NEW BRICK WHICH

MATCHES ADJACENT COURSING.




ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES CH-5

=
East West Hyphen
East Wing Hyphen Central Block West Wing
Front of House -- North View
—
East Wing A wood frame structure 1 112- framing dates to the late 18th

stories high with a gambrel-roof
and an external brick chimney.
Much of the structure’s internal

century. According to tradition,
Thomas Stone may have used this
wing as his law office.

East Hyphen

A one-story brick structure with
a gable-roof. The east hyphen
serves as an entryway to the
basement of the central block.

It is constructed at a wide obtuse

angle from the central block. The
present east hyphen was probably
constructed during the early to mid
19th century.

Central Block

Constructed during the early
1770’s, it was the first section of
the house to be completed. It isa
1 1/2-story brick structure with a
gambrel-roof, dormer windows, an
elevated basement, twWo external end
chimneys, and two front and back
piazzas (porches). A center
hallway separated the parlor room
from the dining room on the first
floor. Two bedrooms were
located on the second floor.

A 1977 chimney fire gutted the
interior of the structure, leaving
only its brick walls. Ironically, the
parlor’s distinctive wood paneling
was saved from destruction when it
was acquired by the Baltimore
Museum of Art in 1928 to be used
in a Colonial room exhibit. The
house’s parlor will be reconstructed
by copying the original paneling.

West Hyphen

The one-story brick west hyphen
was constructed during the late 18th
century shortly after the central
block was completed. Like the east
hyphen, it is constructed at a wide
obtuse angle from the central block.

A second story addition was built
around 1928. This addition was
removed after the 1977 fire and the
former low-arched gable-roof was
replaced.

West Wing

A two-story gable-roof structure,
probably built during the 1840’s.
Interesting features include braced-
frame sides and brick-end walls.
Two internal chimneys on each end
of the structure provided heat for

a kitchen/laundry area on the first
floor and two bedrooms on the
~ecor”’

An original 18th century brick
foundation lies underneath the
present structure. This former
wing was most likely used as a
kitchen and may have been
destroyed by fire during the early
19th century.
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